
 

Environmental Advisory                                Lower Saucon Township                                             July 10, 2012  

Council                                                                          Minutes                                                                   7:00 PM 

 

 

I. OPENING 

 

CALL TO ORDER:  The Environmental Advisory Council meeting of Lower Saucon Township was 

called to order on Tuesday, July 10, 2012 at 7:05 P.M., at 3700 Old Philadelphia Pike, Bethlehem, PA, with 

Sandra Yerger, Chairman, presiding.   

   

 ROLL CALL:   
 Members:  Chair, Sandra Yerger; Tom Maxfield, Colin Guerra, and Allan Johnson.  Absent – Tom 

McCormick.  Associate Members:  Dru Germanoski and Glenn Kaye; Absent – Hazem Hijazi.  Planner:  

– Absent (not needed);  Hellertown Liaison:  Terry Boos; Jr. Council Member:  Vacant.  Laura Ray and 

Ted Beardsley arrived at 7:03 PM.  Glenn Kaye arrived at 7:10 PM. 

  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

II. OPEN SPACE SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

A. PROPERTY UPDATES 

 

1. UPDATE ON SALE OF DYER PROPERTY & MONITORING REPORT BY 

WILDLANDS CONSERVANCY 

 

Mrs. Yerger said you’ll have three reports.  There is a report for Dyer, Bracalante, and 

Noble, but however, according to Mr. Johnson who went with him, if you look at the 

paperwork, it’s a little messed up.  They have the wrong property sold to the wrong people.  

There are a couple of other discrepancies, so we should ask Wildlands to correct their 

monitoring reports and resubmit them.  Mr. Johnson said besides a couple of mistakes in 

the report, he accompanied Carl Martin while they walked around the three conservation 

easements and they found, as the pictures in the reports show, one of the big problems is 

there’s a lot of grapevines and other types of vines growing in the trees in the conservation 

easement.  One of his pictures actually shows how the grapevines killed the tree so much, 

that during a storm, a big tree got blown down.  Then another place they walked along the 

stream, there were trees along the stream that there were vines all over them and when they 

die, their roots are no longer going to be keeping the stream bank from eroding.  It’s a big 

problem with that conservation easement.  Mrs. Yerger asked if they were all grapevines?  

Mr. Johnson said Carl said they were all grapevines, but he doesn’t know.   They are big 

vines.  You can’t see the tops of the trees as the vines are so thick.  Mrs. Yerger said she 

was told that grapevines do not kill trees though.  Mr. Boos said the manner in which the 

trees suffer their damage is from the grape canopy over shadowing the trees and they can’t 

get enough light plus the trees become susceptible to breakage with the increased weight of 

the vines.  They physically do not strangle the trees, but they can damage them. Mr. 

Johnsons said that’s the type of damage he saw.  At one place where someone was crossing 

the stream with one of the ATV’s, the trail looked kind of old, and whoever was doing it, 

isn’t doing it anymore.  There was evidence of so-called paintball blind.  It was in the 

floodplain.  He didn’t see anything additional to that.  Mrs. Yerger said Carl Martin was 

the gentleman who did the monitoring for Wildlands.  Mr. Johnson said towards the end of 

the monitoring, end of their walk, they bumped into the man that is surrounded by the three 

conservation easements, Mr. Kern, and they talked to him quite a bit about the history of 

the property and how things happened, what happened on it.  They explained to him about 

the conservation easements which he didn’t quite realize what was going on.  Carl 

explained to him what it was all about.  After they talked to him awhile, he seemed to be 

acceptable of the situation.  Mrs. Yerger said we need to have corrected records for our 

Township records, so she needs a motion.   

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 2 of 19 

MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved to have Wildlands correct the monitoring records for the Dyer, Bracalante and 

Eichenlaub properties.    

SECOND BY: 

ROLL CALL: 

 

MOTION BY: Ms. Ray amended her motion and moved to have Wildlands correct the monitoring reports for 

the Dyer, Bracalante and Eichenlaub conservation properties and have them signed.    

SECOND BY: Mr. Johnson 

ROLL CALL: 5-0 (Mr. McCormick – Absent) 

 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. GIS PRESENTATION WITH JOHN WILSON FROM LAFAYETTE COLLEGE 

 

Mrs. Yerger said John Wilson is here from Lafayette and will give us a presentation so we can use 

it for the benefit of the Township. 

 

Mr. Wilson started his presentation with slides of what a GIS is. Most people have an idea of what 

this is, but not the full understanding.  The definition of a GIS not just talks about the end result, 

but also the work that goes into making that map; the data that is collected behind the GPS units, 

the computers, the printers; everything that is going on to make this data set come to life.  Most 

importantly is the last part of that sentence on using that data to solve some complex planning or 

management problem.  That’s where a GIS is most useful to any organization.  He’s here tonight to 

show you two things.  One is to show you a GIS and what can be done, and then to try and 

potentially develop some relationships with you for projects for his students.   He enjoys using real 

world problems for his students.   

 

Mr. Wilson showed a software program he uses.  Right now, he has a layer on the left hand side 

and an aerial photo on the right side.  He has his student do a project in class which deals with a set 

of data.  He asked them to find a piece of land that a customer is requesting.  There is a customer 

that wants to build a solar home.  They want to be organic gardeners.  They don’t want to live on 

the limestone as they don’t like sinkholes.  They want to be at least 200 meters away from roads as 

they don’t want to see any road.  You have a number of criteria they are looking for to build their 

ideal home.  With the old tried and true method, you can go out and drive around and see what’s 

out there.  With GIS, you can ask the computer to do it for you.  You start out with a couple of 

pieces of data to help you out.  You start out with the digital elevation model, which shows the 

elevation.  If you want to build a solar home, you need a south facing slope.  You can take the data 

and that tells you what direction each cell of ground faces.  You can take that information and put 

south as being ideal, so instantly it shows what is in your portion zone.  You can do the same thing 

with the kind of slopes you want to live on.  You can do the same things with roads.  You can do 

the same thing with geology and soils.  You can take all this information and join it all together and 

you get a final image.  All it did was add up the values of each cell in the map and it found good 

parcels versus bad parcels.  If you had perfect geology, perfect soils, perfect slopes, perfect roads, 

you could get a score of zero and there are places on the map with a score of zero.  Everything else 

meets some of the criteria.  You can then zoom in on that parcel that meet that criteria, and that will 

provide you all the information.  You can see who owns it, and can say, okay, I’ll go to those 

people and see if they want to sell it.  The data sets which are out there can be used in any way to 

provide you with features that will answer your questions.  He likes to do this project with his 

students as it shows you the big picture of what can be done.   

 

Mr. Wilson showed the Dravecz property on the screen.  This is a data set that has all of the 

LVPC’s GIS files.  Highlighting the property, you can see the streams going through, the ponds, 

and the wetlands. You can look for woodlands, soils of the area, geology.  All the information is 

right there.  You can click on it and identify it.  The computer is set up for the EAC to take with 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 3 of 19 

you this evening to start looking at the data of your Township.  His goal is down the road, his 

students may be able to assist you to develop a specialized GIS data base that meets you needs 

more than just the LVPC’s data.  Their data is a great start as they got the data and they have 

wetlands, census information, slopes, everything.  It’s updated yearly, so it’s very up-to-date; 

however, it may not meet your specific requirements or specific needs for projects you are doing or 

your overall goals.  He hopes down the road you’ll be able to identify ways where the data you 

need can be something that his students can help provide to build a data set that answers questions.   

 

Mr. Wilson asked if anyone had any questions?  Mrs. Yerger said if we should decide to work with 

your students, and work on a project with them, what’s the timeframe as we’ll have to come up 

with some criteria and things we want to identify or learn about in the Township.  Are we talking 

about starting in the Fall, two months or three months?  Mr. Wilson said a lot of it depends on the 

timing and the project.  His GIS course is in the falls starting on August 27.  His students will be 

working on the projects.  This semester he has 16 students, and he’ll be working with different 

organizations as 16 students on one project is way too much.   If we get three people dedicated to 

LST, two dedicated to Bushkill, etc., they can really diversify the needs of the community.   Long-

term, students who have taken the course, are often looking for thesis down the road where they 

can incorporate these things, so that could be a long-term thing.  It all depends on the students and 

the Township in terms of their needs.  He thinks July 30
th
, there is a regional EAC meeting held in 

Moore Township and he will be discussing this again.   

 

Mr. Germanoski said this Fall would be a great time to take advantage of this as Mr. Wilson said 

he’ll have 16 students again.  We should talk about whether we want to do this and brainstorm 

some ideas.  Mr. Wilson said one of the things is the brainstorming.  You may think we can’t do 

this, but you never know.  Put it on paper, and give it to them, and they will see if it can be done.  

The hardest thing is if it involves land access.  That’s where it is always problematic, but a lot of 

other projects in developing programs and methodology in extracting information are very, very 

simple.  Mr. Germanoski said Mr. Wilson would have the students do field work as long as they 

have access to the property by permission from the landowners?  Mr. Wilson said exactly.  It’s 

definitely landowner specific.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said he sees there’s a lot of little streams on there that don’t appear on any other 

maps that they’ve seen so far of this property, and a lot of small ponds.  He doesn’t know how 

recent LVPC’s data is, but when it was Army Corps, a wetland had to be 10,000 square feet before 

it would show up on anything.  Our ordinance calls for much less than that.  It’s something like a 

thousand feet.  He doesn’t know if they get that from aerial data or how they identify wetland areas 

and soil types.  Mr. Wilson said it’s a combination of soil types as well as aerial photography 

interpretations.  Some of it is interpretation.  No data is foolproof unless it’s been ground checked.  

He knows there are wetlands on his property and he walks across it and it’s never been wet in his 

life.  Why do they classify it as a wetland?  Well, something somewhere thought it was.  With this 

data, there are procedures they use to create that data set, so the wetlands will say “digitized from, 

by, this timeframe” using this information.  A lot of this information is associated with the maps 

here to assist with that.  Mr. Maxfield said if you were trying to locate wetlands, smaller than 

10,000 square feet, fieldwork would be the next data step with coordinates.  Mr. Wilson said 

correct. 

 

Mr. Germanoski said one of the things the students could do that would be helpful is there are a 

variety of scales of maps from different eras.  There are things that show up in the old geology of 

Northampton County book which dates back to the 30’s, and there’s a county-wide map and you 

won’t see it, so the students could comb through that data and start to target things to verify or 

follow up.  To rather rely on one source, they can look at a number of potential things, so when 

they go put the boots on the ground they have reason to target specific things and verify whether 

those old maps are accurate or not.   Mr. Wilson said there is topography available back to the 30’s, 

50’s, 70’s, etc. so you can put it in here and look at any plot of land for approximately 60 or 70 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 4 of 19 

years.  Included in your data set are aerial photos from 1992, 1999 2004, 2005, 2008, and 2010.  

You already have 20 some years of photos.  Additionally people are concerned with elevations and 

relief, so there’s a digital elevation model.  It’s high resolution digital elevation, one meter cell 

size, so you are getting 2’ contour angles whereas your standard US GIS Map gives you 20’ angles.  

Mr. Johnson said how much can you blow it up?  Mr. Wilson said you can go into the cells if you 

want.  You can see the gentle shapes of the ground, the subtle points, the ridges, and it really does 

come out.  This data has been processed and there is data called raw data which is point data files 

that gets gridded into this.  The raw data includes everything the laser beam hit, buildings, trees, so 

you can look on the raw data and see the peak line of the roof, the shrubbery, a little bit of 

everything.  Mr. Johnson asked if the latitude and longitude associated with this?  Mr. Wilson said 

yes, it is.  State plain is the standard for Pennsylvania, a form of longitude and latitude, but you can 

change it into 78 degrees west and 41 degrees north if you want to.  Mrs. Yerger said you can 

overlay this with parcel data.  Mr. Wilson said anything, you name it.   

 

Mr. Johnson said they’ve seen in various other examples that parcel data doesn’t really match 

reality.  How close is it on here?  Mr. Wilson said parcel data is a little bit tricky.  Part of it is two-

fold.  The frequency with parcel data is updated and then drawn down to the local computer 

meaning LVPC gets it from the local municipalities and it’s about a two, three month lapse time as 

things get updated in the books before they get into the systems of the computer.  As far as the 

actual line, there is going to be some error where that line is on this map because it was taken from 

a paper map.  When it’s taken from a paper map and digitized on a computer, there’s error 

associated with it.  In some instances, it’s in the order of inches, and other instances it could be 

feet.  It depends what error was incorporated when that data was transposed on a paper map to a 

digital version.   

 

Mr. Johnson said could you determine the error by going out in the field, standing at a particular 

corner and with a GPS device, and comparing that longitude and latitude to what this tells you it is?  

Mr. Wilson said yes, you can compare.  You can plug a GPS right into this and see a dot where you 

are on the map.  That’s easily done and it can identify where you are.  You can measure it on the 

computer to find out if there is an actual error.  That error is only for that point right there, but as 

soon as you go around the corner, or up the hill, you will have a different error.  Mr. Germanoski 

said you’d have to have a high resolution GPS as opposed to the standard hand held one.  Mr. 

Maxfield said they have some here at the Township which they could use for a project.  They are 

on a pole. 

 

Mr. Wilson said the data is out there.  The biggest hurdle to any project is what do you want to do 

and the sky is the limit.  Anything can be done it’s just a matter of figuring out how to do it.  You 

need to brainstorm things you want to look at.  Bushkill is really big on conservation of open space 

and farmland preservation, so they worked with them in the past to do assessment values for 

parcels on land based on criteria, wetlands, woodlands, steep slopes, etc., etc.  They developed for 

them an additional methodology that they could use to try and highlight land that might meet 

preservation or would be good for preservation.  Other Township’s might be looking at water 

protection; others at runoff.   You name it, it can be anything down the road.  Any process or 

feature and something can be found and identified.    

 

Mr. Germanoski said Mr. Wilson had some of his students do for the Bushkill Watershed 

Association, was put the land use change through time and digitize it so you could snap shot it 

through time and see what the patterns are and how land use has changed.  In our case, we talked 

about for open space preservation, identify the criteria that we think are most valuable and get 

values based on the criteria that the Township uses that are valuable and identify the most valuable 

parcels.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said he keeps thinking about things where the stream has been moved and we could 

get the historical data where the stream was and how the soils were affected.  That would be really 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 5 of 19 

cool.  Mr. Germanoski said you mention there were streams up on the map that you never saw 

before.  He used this data set on a research project recently because it shows us flows that don’t 

show up on any of the maps.  Mr. Maxfield said if you have something like a disappearing stream 

as we have a lot of around here.  How do they map something like that?  Is there a visual break in 

it?  Mr. Wilson said you’ll see streams start and stop if that is the case.  You will see some streams 

end as all things end at municipal boundaries.  Some of it may be the nature of the data set as this is 

a high resolution data set, so when it was collected water was flowing and undoubtedly it wasn’t 

going into the ground whereas if you look at historical maps you would see breaks in those streams 

and they could be identified.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said do you see a difference in elevation with sinkholes even like old sinkholes?  You 

were talking about how exact the elevation readings can be.  Mr. Wilson said you’d have to have 

imagery from before and after.  You would have to have data before the sinkhole and data after the 

sinkhole to see the change in elevation.  

 

Mr. Wilson said the data it out there, it’s just a matter of finding out what the group wants.  Mr. 

Boos said as far as watershed, can you determine if a storm detention basin is working properly?  

Mr. Wilson said functioning properly, not necessarily.  That’s a boots on the ground sort of thing.   

As far as identifying what drainage is assessing or encompassing, that is something this data can 

do.  They can put a dot on the map if they found a drainage basin right here, and find exactly what 

areas it is draining in from and you can say this sub development was supposed to have a  drainage 

basin that encompasses x, y and z area.  That can information can be gotten from it, but we can’t 

tell if it’s working properly.  Is it actually detaining it and going into the ground.  That’s something 

you have to get from groundwork.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said she knows there was a watershed wide study done for the Saucon Creek.  Is there, 

in your opinion, some data that might be helpful to augment it?  She understands it’s more than 

Township wide.  Are there things that are not covered in that study that we may be able to help 

supplement with this type of study?  Mr. Boos said he would imagine there would be.  Mrs. Yerger 

said what she’s getting at is we should probably cross reference with you and see what you need 

and maybe we can help and have a dual project going on.  Mr. Johnson said he could think of one 

thing that may be a good idea.  When they walked those streams, they are divided into sections, and 

those sections were referred to as reaches.  The beginning and the end of those reaches were never 

identified as far as their location with longitude and latitude, so if we could ever find them again 

and find the longitude and latitude at each one of those reaches, then we could show that on a map.  

The data we took when we walked each reach, we could look on a map and say this is the data, this 

is the information we took when we walked that section.  We could show the sections on the map.  

Mr. Wilson said you find a dot with longitude and latitude, it will show up on the map.  Mr. 

Germanoski said you can type in the characteristics that you described.  Mr. Wilson typed it in and 

showed riparian buffer data.  He said you can see various sections of green and yellow.  Green says 

there is some riparian buffer for 100’ on both sides of the stream and yellow says there is riparian 

buffer of 100’ on one side of the stream and no line is no buffer.  This data was collected three 

years ago, so it’s a little bit out of date.   

 

Mr. Johnson said he might be wrong of what he said as Erin located the information of those reach 

boundaries on the GIS system that she was working on, so they might be associated with the 

latitude and longitude.  He never saw that information.  Mr. Wilson said if you have information 

for each reach of stream that tells us water quality, they can classify it into groups of water quality.  

It meets criteria; it exceeds criteria, whatever you need.  You can look at a map of a watershed, and 

green is good, red is bad.  You’ll be able to see it based on the color code.  Mr. Johnson said we 

should talk to Erin and see how much GIS information she had when she developed this thing and 

how much was correlated to what we found when we walked it; and if she ever went back as they 

made that big thick report if she doesn’t know if the data in there was correlated with latitude and 

longitude.  That might be something we could study.  We have a big thick report that people made 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 6 of 19 

and the girl that worked on that project did a lot of GIS work to prepare these sections of the 

stream, so to find out what she did and what she didn’t do, and maybe a student could take it up 

from there and do more.  Mr. Wilson said absolutely.  If you have any kind of data, it can go in.  

It’s all characterized and you can tell it to display things differently based on that characterization.  

As long as there’s information out there, they can put it on the map. 

 

Mr. Johnson said is there tutorials on the computer to use the Arc View?  Mr. Wilson said he can 

provide them and recommend a book for the EAC.     

 

Mr. Maxfield said when do you need to hear from us next?  Mr. Wilson said as you all decide, it 

works for him.  He’d like to know if there’s interest before the first day of school which is August 

27
th
.  That will provide time for brainstorming.  Mrs. Yerger said we’ll put this back on the August 

agenda and she will recommend that everybody go back and look at our criteria for the open space 

determination as she really liked his idea about Bushkill using that to sort of refine some of the 

grading of properties and that would be a good place to start.  In the meantime, they’ll talk to the 

Watershed Association. They have had a study done and it’s been published, but maybe we can see 

how that can overlap and pull out from there and be helpful for us and for them.  Mr. Wilson said 

the students will get started on this in September.  Mrs. Yerger said then we have two meetings and 

can give him some guidance before they give him information.  They will start in August and get 

the momentum going and refine it in September.  She’s sure they can tweak it as they go along.   

 

The EAC agreed that the presentation was great and that it was a great opportunity, so they are very 

pleased, and will take him up on it.   

 

B. COLDWATER HERITAGE PARTNERSHIP PROJECT SURVEY 

 

Mrs. Yerger said we have a one page Coldwater Heritage Partnership Project survey.  This was 

done years ago.  Nothing came with it as to why it surfaced.  The gentlemen who worked on it is 

still working with Hellertown on some things.  They are just doing a follow-up survey to see if this 

plan has been utilized.  This one was for Cooks Creek.  To her knowledge, there has not been any 

interaction with the plan.  If anyone would like to get a copy of the plan, the Township has it on file 

and we can get it forwarded it to you. The questions she saw, we haven’t really used it to her 

understanding. She has not heard anything.  She will talk to Mr. Cahalan and say we have no 

comment.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said he’d like to find out how much footage we have of Cooks Creek in the 

Township.   Mrs. Yerger said it’s split, it’s at two locations, so she’s not sure.  Mr. Johnson said a 

lot of their watershed is in LST.  Mrs. Yerger said not a lot, it’s all headwaters and it’s some, but 

not all.  Mr. Johnson said what we have is a significant amount of watershed draining into 

Springtown Township.  Everything north of Springtown Hill Road drains into Springfield 

Township and that’s a lot of acreage.  Mr. Wilson said all the areas and distances you need are right 

in this computer.   

 

IV. DEVELOPER ITEMS 
 

A. BETHLEHEM RENEWABLE ENERGY WAIVER #WV 04-12 – 2335 APPLEBUTTER 

ROAD 

 

Mrs. Yerger said you did receive in your packet the actual request.  She asked Staff to do as an 

addendum, three pieces that were handed out to you tonight.  They are recommendation letters and 

review letters on this request.  One letter is from our Planner, Judy Stern-Goldstein and there are 

two from our Township Engineers, with respect to this project.  They have expressed some requests 

that be considered of the applicant before Council would approve.   

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 7 of 19 

Ms. Ray said what are they putting in these tanks and why do they need them?  Mrs. Yerger said 

they are temporary storage tanks.  One of the recommendations is they give them a start and end 

date. Mr. Johnson said when the gas comes out of the ground it has water and stuff in it.  They have 

a little system there that takes that water out of the gas before they burn it in their turbine and the 

water in that system was supposed to meet a certain set of specifications that was acceptable to the 

Bethlehem Sewage Treatment plant.  They went over that, so the sewage treatment plant won’t take 

that water anymore.  They have to do something with it until they can modify that system to handle 

the pollutants that are in the water.  They are going to work on that.  Mrs. Yerger said they want to 

store it in these tanks.  Mr. Johnson said store it in the tanks until one of the tanks gets pretty much 

full, then a truck is going to come in and take it away.  The reason they want to have two tanks is 

so that they can test one tank while the other tank is being filled.  After they do tests on the tank, 

then a truck will come and take the stuff away and then they’ll switch back and forth.  One of the 

things that bother him is that it seems and even says Hanover’s June 22
nd

 letter, “the Designer 

intends for the spill containment facilities to have a capacity of greater than the primary storage 

tanks, however the size of the spill containment facilities provided in the application appear to be 

approximately half the primary storage tanks.  This discrepancy must be addressed.  Also, slope of 

ground should be considered in sizing the tanks”.    That’s pretty significant. You would think the 

secondary containment of each one of the tanks would be able to hand the entire contents of the 

tank.  Mrs. Yerger said obviously, so do the engineers.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said these are things that they are saying that need to be addressed by the applicant 

before anything remotely can be considered for approval.  Ms. Ray said what have they been doing 

in the meantime with this water?  Mr. Johnson said they shut down the plant.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s 

back to being burned off by the flare.  Mr. Maxfield said this is an interim to get them back on line.  

Mrs. Yerger said the system they are going to be putting in place to correct this and that’s why they 

need it tested and proving it that it will address the situation.  Mr. Johnson said after they put the 

new system in, they have to continue to trap the water until they can prove the new system is 

cleaning up the water enough to send it to the Bethlehem Sewage Treatment plant?  It’s going to go 

on for awhile.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said on Hanover’s June 22
nd

 letter, they are talking about the spill tanks being 

exposed to the weather and the rain coming in and they will be emptied periodically.  It talks about 

them being emptied if sheens are not present.  He’s thinking these tanks will have rainwater in 

them.  Mr. Johnson said not the tanks, the secondary containment structure.  Mr. Maxfield said 

okay, the containment structure, the one that’s open to the water.  He’s thinking instead of this kind 

of periodic wishy washy kind of emptying schedule, why don’t we recommend to Council that they 

empty these on a very regular basis based on the larval cycle of a mosquito so we don’t have a 

mosquito pit there all the time.  If it takes how many days for a mosquito to mature within a water 

environment like that, then they should be emptying it before that mosquito can mature.   

 

Mr. Kaye said what’s a sheen?  Mr. Maxfield said they are talking about the chemicals that could 

be mixed with the water if there was a spill or something like that, and they’ll discharge it basically 

if they’ve been treated already.  The sheen would basically be leakage or untreated water or 

something like that, that shouldn’t be.   

 

Ms. Donna Louder was present.  She said she lives in Steel City.  In her hands, she has a copy of 

the violations from BRE.  That was the violation when their system broke down, which is the 

system that separates the water and the oil and collects all the bad stuff and sends the fresh water to 

the sewage treatment plant.  The City analysis shows that IESI, the Bethlehem Landfill 

Corporation, which leases the land to BRE, violated the permit in the following manner.  “On 

February 9, 2012, the pollutant that was found was arsenic, mercury, oil and grease, total petroleum 

hydro carbon, bi plural benzene, benzene, chloral benzene, ethyl benzene, ketone, and tulane and 

zylene.  The violations were as follows:  There were 22 violations in all.  The sewage plant had to 

be evacuated.  The fine was for $45,000.00.  It had the limit over all the acceptable limits.  Some of 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 8 of 19 

those chemicals discharged, there was no limit, any amount was not to be in that water.  It was 

damaging.  The exceedance is up to 2 times greater for the one violation, 3 times greater, 4 times 

greater, 5 times greater, and that’s how they came up with their fines.  She did some research on 

things caused by the arsenic – cancer, major organ diseases, respiratory, blood disorders, kidney 

damage.  TPH, which is the total petroleum that remains in the soil for an extended period of time 

can cause nervous system damage, respiratory, kidney, and immune disorders.  The other thing is 

in the June 22
nd

 letter, No. 14, reads “The applicant should certify that the stored waste is non-

hazardous”.  She is thinking before this waste should be put into those cylinders or holders, they 

should be sure of what is going in there.  They mention two cylinders to be put on the property, 

they are saying they want to place them 150 yards from the road, and they are talking about two of 

them, and she believes there is going to be a berm around them.  With the snow plows going by, if 

the tanks are hit and damaged, there could be a major issue as well as the tractor trailer traffic that’s 

going through.  Mrs. Yerger said the vehicular movement is recommended on the Hanover June 20, 

2012 letter to be specified and addressed as it was a concern of Hanover as well.   

 

Ms. Louder said the other thing the engineers mentioned were the emergency people notified, the 

fire companies, etc.  The Township Water Authority needs to be notified because those tanks are 

being placed on top of the water easement.  It’s all in the letters from Hanover.  She just wanted to 

make sure it was called to the EAC’s attention. 

 

Ms. Ray said a big concern she has is not only storing the stuff, but these guys are going to be 

driving around with this stuff several times in these big trucks and they could fall over and dump 

all over the place and are we prepared for spill disasters like that?  They are going to truck away 

this stuff.  Mr. Maxfield said it’s supposed to be treated water that they are trucking away.  Ms. 

Ray said they are storing it temporarily in these tanks?  Mr. Maxfield said his understanding is 

there isn’t supposed to be anything in the tanks until it’s treated.  Mrs. Yerger said they are trying 

to rectify the “oops” that happened.  Ms. Ray said what happens to what they are taking out of the 

water?  It just disappears.  Mr. Maxfield said that has to be disposed of per DEP regulations.  Ms. 

Ray said how does that go away?  Mr. Maxfield said he’s not sure.  Mr. Johnson said they are 

taking the water to a sewage treatment plant that can handle it.  Ms. Ray said then you are saying it 

has all these toxins present?  Mr. Johnson said that was his impression.  He didn’t read everything 

either.  Mrs. Yerger said it’s been hard as you didn’t get this information until tonight.  Mr. 

Johnson said the dirty water comes in from the landfill.  They don’t need to run the generator.  Mrs. 

Yerger said they need to clean it.  Mr. Maxfield said Hanover’s letter of June 20, 2012 says “The 

submission of documents and any approval should clearly state that these tanks are to be used only 

temporarily and only used for the storage of pretreated wastewater.  Any conversion of these tanks 

to a treatment system that would allow this tank to be used on a more permanent basis should be 

prohibited since the currently proposed liquid transfer system and currently proposed spill 

protective system is temporary in nature”.   They gave us a date of approximately three months.  

We should try and nail down the date.  Mr. Johnson said it seems what they are going to do is 

install the cleaning system and then they are going to run dirty water through it to see how well it 

works, and then the water is going to be stored in the tanks.  If the cleaning system doesn’t work 

right or they need to tweak it or adjust it, you are going to get some dirty water in the tanks.  That’s 

why it’s going to the sewage treatment plan down in Southern PA so they can handle it.   

 

Mr. Germanoski sad what seems to be missing is we don’t know how much pretreatment has been 

going on in the first place.  His assumption, not being part of this initially, was it was burned.  He 

would assume they had a pretreatment procedure and it didn’t meet the standards.   They must have 

some pretreatment facility on site.  They are unable to reduce the contamination level to meet the 

permit they have for the sewage treatment plant.  They must have a processing place and they are 

trying to take it to the next level.  We never get pure H2O out of the ground, so there are limits 

established and they are not meeting their limits, and without us seeing what he previous 

procedures were and what they are permitted for, we are sort of surmising what they are doing 

now.  It’s obviously met some set of standards previously.  Mrs. Yerger said she’s not sure if it not 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 9 of 19 

started to function correctly or whether it didn’t meet the standards.  Mr. Johnson said or the water 

being removed from the gas was worse than what they thought it would be.  Mrs. Yerger said right.  

She is sure it broke, but it may have also gotten worse.  Mr. Johnson said it’s a complicated 

situation. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said what could be worse is that we go back to the flare system that used to be there 

as that basically burns the methane and vaporizes other things too.  That was the whole idea of the 

plant in the first plant, an attempt to treat these chemicals first, clean up things, and then use the 

methane to generate electricity.   

 

Mr. Germanoski said the Hanover letter dated June 22, 2012, in essence, they have to comply with 

these recommendations?  Mrs. Yerger said yes.  Mr. Germanoski said one of the main issues they 

have to address is if their containment capacity is sufficient.  In view of the fact that they will be 

required to meet all of items that Hanover has.  Mrs. Yerger said that is something we have to 

reiterate.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t like the time scale they have.  Approximately three months, 

intermittently they are going to empty these, he wants them to provide good, solid schedules, based 

on things that make sense.  Mrs. Yerger said part of it gives her an uneasy feeling that this is based 

on, and she may be assuming too much, when they meet the standards.  She gets the impression 

that they are not sure when that is going to happen, so they are going to have to test the water so 

long and makes sure that it functions properly.  She may be reading more into it that this is why 

they are going to get rid of it in two months or whatever.  Mr. Maxfield said he can understand that, 

but he thinks instead of making a mosquito breeding put there, we should ask them to empty the 

secondary containment tanks. Mrs. Yerger said on Hanover’s June 22 letter, No. 4, the discussion 

with the Designer, it says “these tanks will be emptied of rainwater on a semi-weekly basis when 

the primary tanks are emptied”. We could ask them to up the schedule.  Mr. Maxfield said if you 

have an old tire on your property and you empty that every third day, you should be okay with the 

mosquitoes.  Mr. Guerra said you could recommend having it drained after every precipitation 

event.  That’s very cut and dry. 

 

Ms. Louder showed a picture of the tank they are proposing, it’s a closed top.    Mr. Johnson said 

that’s the primary tank. The secondary tank is the one we are talking about.  The secondary is a big 

piece of polyester that has one foot high sides on it and the primary tank is in the middle of that, so 

if anything spills out of the primary tank, it’s caught by the other thing.  Everything is temporary. 

 

Ms. Louder said her concern is the landfill was fined in April.  The occurrence happened in 

February and they are still sitting on a closed BRE over there.  What has been damaged or 

malfunctioned was the oil water separate and no one has been moving on it.  BRE has been 

dragging their feet.  Personally, her opinion, the company doesn’t seem to follow through on their 

words just because of what is written on this paperwork.  If they had a huge violation like that and 

didn’t correct it, how worthy is their word that it’s only going to be there for two months and when 

the trucks come through and take it down to Delaware County, as that’s the only company that can 

handle that toxic water, what happens if the truck is in an accident, what if?  What if the containers 

are contaminated, how do they clean them out again so that they can get fresh water again and take 

it out or vice versa?  Hanover suggested the water remain clean, she just is not comfortable with itr 

and she hopes as a Township and for environmental reasons, nobody here is comfortable with it 

either. 

 

Mr. Maxfield said they are going to have to do what DEP requires them to do.  It’s not their word, 

it’s what they have to do.  It’s what is required of them to do.  Ms. Ray said she doesn’t think we 

even have to allow them to have this temporary setup.  They can stay shut down until they are 

ready to go with the real deal and that might make them do it quicker.  Mr. Johnson said you can’t 

do that as they need the dirty water to run through their system to see if the new system takes all of 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 10 of 19 

the contaminants out.  Ms. Ray said this just doesn’t seem like it’s for a test.  They want to do this 

until they are ready.  Mr. Johnson said as far as the turbine generator goes, that isn’t started up until 

the new system is proven to work properly.  They won’t let it.  The device that separates the water 

from the gas is separate from the turbine generator.  Ms. Ray said it says “a permanent solution will 

be implemented in approximately three months”, so for now, it’s just temporary and they want to 

keep going.  Mr. Johnson said he doesn’t think they are going to run the generator.  Mr. Maxfield 

said they can’t be actually up and running until they find that permanent solution.  This is about 

testing.  This is what they need to put in for it to work.  Ms. Ray said she didn’t catch that it was 

just for testing.  Mr. Maxfield said Mr. Birdsall said in a couple of places that it has to be clearly 

stated that they are temporary, only used for temporary storage of pretreated waste water.  

Everything is called temporary.    

 

Mr. Germanoski said item 2, that is what everyone is uncomfortable with.  Approximately three 

months, so they Hanover is recommending that the Township may want to make statements about 

absolute dates for compliance.   That’s very sensible.  Mrs. Yerger said at least add to it “no more 

than” so it’s not going to drag on for six or eight months.  Put a limit on that.  If they get it up and 

running and is allowed to happen and it test cleans sooner, that’s fine and good, but you don’t want 

this to drag on.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said let him do more investigation about the mosquito thing so that when it finally 

does get to Council to make a solid recommendation, they do have an actual number of days on 

that.  For now, we can say it’s a mosquito larval cycle based on that.  He likes the idea of putting 

the date for them.  The more nebulous you are, the less pressure they will feel.  The more solid they 

are going to have to get it done, if they need to come back for a waiver for the date, then they can 

come on their knees and beg.  Mrs. Yerger said what it should minimally, approximately no more 

than three months.  That’s their cutoff.  Mr. Johnson said what if they don’t make it?  Mr. Maxfield 

said they have to come back for a waiver on that condition.  Then they better have some good 

reasons.  Mr. Johnson said they come back and they asked for permission to continue their testing 

past the three month date.  That’s what they have to do?  Mrs. Yerger said yes, and they shut down 

which means they are not going to be able to activate and they aren’t going to be making money, so 

it’s in their best interested to make sure it works and works right and passes all the standards, and 

DEP is happy and everybody else is at least as happy as you can be in a situation like this.  It’s in 

compliance. 

 

Ms. Louder said what about the water easement?  Mr. Maxfield said they couldn’t do that without 

the Authority’s knowledge, so maybe the Authority knows.  Ms. Louder said it says LS Authority 

may have comments as the tanks are close within the pump station and water line easement.  No. 

15 says emergency personnel should be notified of this proposal.  She spoke to the Chief of Steel 

City Fire Company today and he was not aware, she made him aware.  She did not make the Water 

Authority aware.  Mr. Maxfield said he knows that he was sent notice of it earlier.  Ms. Louder said 

he didn’t have this one.  He was given a copy of the storage tanks plan.  Mr. Maxfield said 

normally Fire Chief’s would be provided with this.  They’d get the same email notice the Township 

gets, which is this is occurring, what do you think?  He’s glad the Fire Chief is on it. 

 

Mr. Bob Wells, 2134 Saucon Avenue, said what’s the big hurry.  In the initial request, it says they 

need to have these temporary tests so they don’t have to delay operations.  They don’t have to wait 

three to six months in order to continue operations.  He said this was a company just a couple of 

months ago not being able to meet standards set by the regulatory body, and now we want to rush 

into give them an opportunity to get right back on line so that they can get back into business as 

soon as possible.  He understands if they are not burning this for energy, they have to burn it as a 

vent.  In time, we are going to be prepared whether burning it for energy is actually advantageous 

over venting it.  There are some professionals and experts in the country that disagree that that’s a 

viable energy burning it for energy.  There are some challenges with that, which he is not prepared 

to discuss today, but they will be in the future.  He’s just wondering if there’s a big hurry that we 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 11 of 19 

need to get this back online right away or should we just give them an opportunity to fix the 

problem or is he missing something here?   

 

Mr. Maxfield said from what they understood, this is their opportunity to fix it.  Personally, when 

this application first came around, it was looked at as a good environmental thing for the 

Township.  It was looked at as re-use of resources, use of a waste resource there.  Burning the flare 

not only burns just the methane, but the dirt that’s with the methane, and all this contaminants that 

they are talking about go into that flare too, so it’s dirty landfill gas.  Mr. Wells said he gets it, but 

he doesn’t like either option.  Mr. Maxfield said he personally would like to see this up and running 

again so that the methane is being cleaned, it’s being disposed of properly, and we’re doing 

something good by supplying energy from a waste resource.  That methane doesn’t escape out 

everywhere.  When it’s on the flare, there are all kinds of stuff escaping.  When it’s going into here, 

everything is contained.  The mistake is when it doesn’t get contained.  Mr. Wells said he’s not 

convinced that it’s contained, and he’s not convinced that the burning of it for energy doesn’t 

create other problems within the landfill or make the landfill operate in a way that can sustain that 

energy generation.  He doesn’t want to go into the technical side of that now.  He’s just concerned 

that we’re jumping into that.  Mr. Maxfield said that does not sound logical to him.  You can’t 

control how much methane comes off rotting garbage.   Rotting garbage and methane, that’s where 

it comes from.   Mr. Wells said garbage and methane are hand-in-hand, he agrees.  Mr. Maxfield 

said he doesn’t understand how you could control that process to sustain BRE longer.  He just 

doesn’t understand.  Methane will be coming off that rotting garbage for decades after the landfill 

closes, so that BRE plant, if it’s operating properly, and is up to snuff, will be operating those 

decades, and that was the hope when they approved it.  Mr. Wells said it’s not working so far.  Mr. 

Maxfield said well, there was a problem.  Mr. Wells said he doesn’t mean to be disrespectful, he 

just personally starting to look at some things that he questions whether the BRE plant is indeed 

100% containing everything and not causing another problem we haven’t addressed yet.  He’s not 

an expert in that field, so he’ll find one that can address that a little more in the future.  He’ll 

respect your beliefs at this point.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s what it is, a belief, and he just makes a 

recommendation.  You can voice your opinion whatever you like.   

 

Mr. Kaye said if he understands it correctly, the landfill is there, it’s not going away.  Mr. Maxfield 

said right.  Mr. Kaye said there are just two options to deal with the methane that’s produced.  One 

is to flare it off; the other is to run it through a plant to generate electricity.  That’s basically just the 

two choices?  Mr. Maxfield said that’s the two choices we have on this landfill.  Mr. Kaye said by 

burning it off in a flare, you’re just burning off the raw methane including whatever contaminants 

are contained therein; whereas if it’s run through a power plant, they are able to treat it, purify it, 

and so forth before it’s burned.  Hopefully to burn it in a cleaner fashion and secondarily generate 

electricity.  That’s why that is the more environmentally sound option.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s 

how it was explained to us when we first looked at the plant.  They called it cleaning up the landfill 

gas.  It had to be cleaned up in order to be burned to generate electricity.  Mr. Kaye said if it’s just 

flared off, it doesn’t have to be cleaned.  Mr. Maxfield said it doesn’t do anything except add more 

particulates or whatever.  It could be with metals and stuff like that in the air.  Mr. Johnson said 

since they haven’t been cited for pollution violation of the turbine gas, the exhaust gas, that’s clean 

enough to meet whatever standards are required for the exhaust from the turbine.  It’s the stuff that 

they take out of the dirty gas while they are cleaning it to be prepared to be burned that’s dirtier 

than what they expected.  Mr. Kaye said that’s the treatment process that they have to develop at 

the plant and in developing that process, they need these containment tanks, at least temporarily 

until they get it fixed.  Mr. Maxfield said so they make sure the water that’s coming out is clean 

enough to go out into our disposal, our septic plant.  Mrs. Yerger said Bethlehem’s technically.  

Mr. Johnson said he’s not still sure of, are they going to be running the turbine generator while they 

are experimenting with the cleaning system or are they just going to work the cleaning system and 

not run the generator.  If they are just working the cleaning system, what are they going to do with 

the clean gases that come off of the cleaning system.  Are they just going to flare it or run the 

generator to burn it up?  He’s not clear on that.  Mr. Kaye said the concerns of some of the citizen’s 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 12 of 19 

here are, one question seems to be, well, can they go ahead and perfect their system without doing 

it onsite and having these temporary containment facilities?  Do we know the answer to that?  

Maybe it just takes longer and it costs them more money to fix things without them also putting the 

containment units on the site.  He doesn’t know the answer to that.  Maybe the only way they can 

get the plant up and running is to have these containment facilities.  Maybe at whatever cost, they 

can still do it, but not have these containment facilities.  That he doesn’t know the answer to.  

Concerns being voiced are that this company has been guilty of violations recently.  We can have 

safety recommendations in place, but they can still say oops and something goes wrong and well 

they get fined.  That doesn’t necessarily fix the damage that’s been done and those seem to be some 

of the concerns of the people that are here today.   

 

Mr. Johnson said you can’t guarantee perfection.  Mr. Yerger said if you look at the June 22
nd

 

letter, No. 2, from Hanover, it talks about approximately 3 months.  “The Township may wish to 

consider requiring a latest date” and we talked about an end date.  “And means of enforcement of 

said latest date”, we talked about that.  This is the line that she thinks makes it sound a little 

ambiguous.  “The Township may also wish to have input on the means of permanent treatment, for 

example, that the treatment be of an in-line, interior type as opposed to an offline, exterior storage 

type”.  That talks to Allan’s and they are not recommending one over the other, they are just saying 

does this need to be explored?  They haven’t really given us, in her opinion, an opinion.  They are 

just saying you can have this and you can have this, maybe you need to look at both of them.  Mr. 

Maxfield said and we don’t know what they currently have.  Mr. Johnson said why don’t you ask 

Hanover what they mean by that statement.  They are the ones that wrote it.  Mrs. Yerger said that 

pretty much summarizes what you’ve said, Allan, we really don’t know what that means.  Mr. 

Johnson said he doesn’t understand what inline interior type is versus off line exterior type, but 

Hanover probably does.  Mrs. Yerger said she doesn’t understand.  She can’t clarify that.   

 

Ms. Louder said when BRE first opened up, what name did they open up under?  Were they owned 

by someone else?  Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t know and if they did, it was only in the planning 

phase.  Mr. Wells said there’s a sign Conectiv.  Mrs. Yerger said that’s Calpine.  Ms. Louder said 

now it’s BRE, she couldn’t remember that name.  When Conectiv first opened up, were they 

producing the same thing?  It was Conectiv.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s the electric plant across the 

street.  Mrs. Yerger said it was Conectiv and Calpine.   It’s not BRE.  BRE was BRE and that’s 

across the street.  

 

Ms. Louder said when BRE opened up, how did they test their systems?  How did they know they 

were going to work the first day they turned everything on?  How did they know the water was not 

going to be contaminated?  Why would they need these storage tanks if they can do it once like 

that, why can’t they do it like that again?  Mr. Maxfield said he doesn’t know.  Mr. Kaye said 

you’re asking a technical question they can’t answer.  Ms. Louder said she understands that.  She 

just wanted to put that thought out there for you.  Mr. Maxfield said these are engineering questions 

that probably the engineer should be asking.  To go back to what Mr. Johnson said, there was a 

period of time where he doesn’t know if they were actually cited, but there was an air pollution 

problem the Township got involved in, and they had to bring that into compliance too. They were 

emitting beyond their allowable percentage of pollutants.  Mrs. Yerger said we don’t know whether 

they were up to speed, if you would, that it was testing right, and that the system is malfunctioning 

enough and it is malfunctioning and that’s what the main problem is or that was a slide that the 

system was gradually malfunctioning.  She can’t answer those questions.  Ms. Louder said when 

she was at her last landfill meeting, Al had talked about it and he said the oil/water separator was 

broken.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said maybe before we go and make a recommendation, we need to have some 

questions answered.  Mrs. Yerger said do you want to summarize them as a request?  Mr. Maxfield 

said yes.  Ms. Ray said before you start your long list, is there a time when they have to have a 

response on their waiver?  Is there time to get answers and talk about it again?  Mrs. Yerger said 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 13 of 19 

the minimum we can do is express our concerns in to Council and say these are questions we have.  

We think you should require an answer to these questions before you decide to make a decision.  If 

we can get the answers back, but she thinks these are concerns we respectfully request that either 

your consultants or engineers address for you and for us.  Mr. Maxfield said maybe we could word 

it like that and say if the EAC doesn’t have a scheduled meeting before the waiver request is up, we 

would respectfully ask that you find the answers to these questions, and that they are answered 

suitable.  Mrs. Yerger said and we recommend that they answer these questions to make sure of the 

safety of the issue.  

 

Mr. Maxfield said let’s start from No. 2 on the June 22
nd

 letter from Hanover.  What is the 

difference between inline interior, offline exterior?  What do they currently have?  Mrs. Yerger said 

we need the difference.  We need clarification.  Mr. Maxfield said in their opinion, which would be 

worse or better, and also, what do they have now?  Mr. Germanoski said another question would 

be, is it necessary for them to run the system in order to test their new treatment facilities 

efficiency?  Mrs. Yerger said to run the turbine?  Mr. Germanoski said he’ll say it again, must they 

run the system as it was in order for them to evaluate their new treatment facility?  Mr. Maxfield 

said we could say, is this application necessary to get the plant up and running, efficiently and 

effectively?   

 

Mr. Johnson said No. 3 on the June 22
nd

 Hanover letter, are we going to like consider that?  The 

engineers are asking that question, do we have to ask it again?  Mr. Germanoski said it needs to be 

addressed.  If that’s less than the primary storage and it fails, you might as well not have it.  Mrs. 

Yerger said we need to emphasize that.  Mr. Johnson said they cover it in their question, but we 

should say make sure No. 3 is considered.  Mrs. Yerger said for consistency, we start with the June 

20
th
 Hanover letter, as that’s the earliest letter.  Then we’ll go through it bullet by bullet and we can 

put a comment if we think it’s appropriate for each bullet.  Mr. Maxfield said if there’s any we feel 

very strongly about like No. 3, we can make two lists.  We can make questions and we can make 

recommendations; that way if we don’t get another chance, we at least get to make some 

recommendations.  Mrs. Yerger said we will encourage Council to implement all the 

recommendations as is in all three letters.  That’s a given.   

 

Ms. Ray said one option is they don’t have to give them this waiver. We always assume you ask for 

a waiver, you get it.  Mrs. Yerger said that’s what she is saying.  Mr. Maxfield said a waiver is 

from land development, which means they could go ahead and do this anyway.  They are asking for 

some of the things that go along with land development like preparations of certain kinds of plans, 

that sort of stuff.   Mrs. Yerger said the waiver is from the broader plan scope.  It’s not from doing 

this.  Mr. Maxfield said the reason they are asking for that waiver is because it’s a modification of 

an existing thing.  If it was a brand new thing, there’s no way they could get out of the land 

development.  Mrs. Yerger said they would have to do a whole full-blown land development plan.  

That’s what their waiver is, it’s not to not do this.  Mr. Maxfield said we get that often.  Ms. Ray 

said she knows, she sees waivers all the time.  Mr. Maxfield said waivers from land development.  

Mrs. Yerger said we could deny a waiver from land development or they can do a land 

development plan and come back with this.  It doesn’t change this component of it.  Complying 

with the land development or not getting a waiver is not going to stop this from happening is what 

she is saying.  Ms. Ray said but from happening in this way.  Mrs. Yerger said no, this part is not 

part of the waiver.  Ms. Ray said it’s saying about putting the tanks in the right-of-way and all 

kinds of other things, they want waivers from.  It doesn’t seem that they could do all the things 

Hanover lists here without a waiver.  Mr. Maxfield said some things are stated just to be stated that 

they have to do them, they may not be requesting a waiver.  It should be noted where the waiver is.  

Mrs. Yerger said it is not.  Mr. Maxfield said then that leads him to believe that the waiver is from 

the land development process.   They are not asking for specific things to have waivers from.  Mrs. 

Yerger said that is usually called out.  Mr. Johnson said yes, that’s what they are asking for.  If you 

read what is in your packet, it explains it.  Basically, they are saying don’t make us go through the 

long drawn out procedure, so that we can get up and running more quickly.  Mrs. Yerger said they 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 14 of 19 

are trying to save time and money.  Mr. Johnson said they are saying two reasons they feel that it’s 

a good thing to allow us to get us up and running quickly is because we won’t be burning the 

landfill gas in the flare anymore and we’d be making electricity for the use of the world.  That’s 

their two reasons.  Mr. Beardsley said if the waiver is denied, they are just going to have to do the 

bigger plan and spend more money and come back and do this all over again.  Mr. Maxfield said 

they are still going to want to put tanks in.  Mrs. Yerger said it doesn’t really change ultimately.  

Ms. Ray said that’s questionable.  When they first opened the plant, what process did they go 

through to test all this?  Mr. Maxfield said it’s very questionable, but we as an EAC can make a 

recommendation that they may want to go back and look at the process, but we can’t make them do 

that.  If they want to go through a land development, and they want to do it this way, that’s 

probably what’s going to happen.  We can’t make them do it a certain way.  It’s like asking 

someone to build a house a certain way.  We don’t like the design of your front porch.  Mrs. Yerger 

said there are certain things you have to comply with for land development, but it doesn’t tell you 

how to build your house; that your house has to be 20’x20.   

 

Mrs. Yerger said let’s go back to the June 20, 2012 Hanover letter.  We are going to try to do this 

so it makes sense.  Mr. Maxfield said No. 1 and No. 2 are the most important parts of the letter.  If 

we want to stress that, it talks about the chemicals being stored and the temporary nature of the 

facilities.  Mr. Germanoski said he would suggest we say something along the lines of because the 

waste water storage tanks are going to be close to karst geology, then we can reference No. 3 in the 

June 22, 2012 Hanover letter that we believe it’s essential that the spill containment facilities have 

a capacity equal to or greater than this primary storage.  Mr. Maxfield said because of the location 

in proximity of karst geology, it’s essential that the spill containment facility be equal to or greater 

than the capacity of the storage tanks.  Mrs. Yerger said that’s referencing the June 20, 2012, No. 1 

and June 22, 2012, No. 3 Hanover letters.  Mrs. Yerger said do we want to say anything in 

particular about the turn around?  Mr. Johnson said are we talking about No. 2 on the June 20
th
 

letter?  Mrs. Yerger said yes, they should be temporary.  Mr. Johnson said they are saying the 

whole system should be only allowed to be a temporary system, so your idea is to give them a date.  

Mrs. Yerger said no more than three months.  Mr. Maxfield said or we can just say they should 

have a clear end date.  Let Council figure out what that is for use of temporary storage tanks.  No. 4 

had been brought up earlier about location to interfere with traffic.  Mr. Maxfield said hopefully if 

they are done at the right three months, there won’t be any snow.  Mrs. Yerger said all of these are 

important.  They need to be tested for leakage.  What we’ll say is that we will recommend that all 

of the three letters be implemented by Council, the June 20, 2012 and June 22, 2012 Hanover 

letters and the June 20, 2012 Memo from Boucher & James, with particular attention to, and we’ll 

cite what Mr. Germanoski just said and we’ll go on to the second part and anything else.  We 

talked about end date.  Mr. Germanoski said would it be reasonable to say and make a suggestion 

to Council that the end date be 90 days after the installation of the storage tanks.  One of the things 

Hanover mentions is if you say approximately three months, you never have a day when you can 

say this is the day.  If you say 90 days subsequent to installation, you are establishing a deadline.   

 

Ms. Louder said she’s reading about the primary temporary tank they are closing.  She mentioned 

something about the sump pumps (could not all of what she was saying).  Continuing, she said 

since the piping will only be temporary, it is not expected to be used in the upcoming winter 

months. Mrs. Yerger said if we do a 90 day cutoff it won’t be used n the winter months.  Ms. 

Louder said she just wanted to verify that was something that was covered.  Mr. Maxfield said they 

say the solution could be implemented in approximately three months which means they are 

putting in installation time and testing time within the three months.  If we put 90 days after 

installation of the tanks, that should be plenty of time for them.  He thinks it’s important, they just 

found West Nile disease in Upper Saucon Township, so he really wants to not make a multiple 

gallon, hundreds of gallons of mosquito breeding grounds.  They put oils in detention ponds 

sometimes, so they try and use natural oil.  That will either kill them or mutate them.  No. 4 on the 

June 22
nd

 letter says “the secondary containment spill tanks are exposed to the weather and will be 

emptied periodically.  Per discussion with the Designer, these tanks will be emptied of rain water 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 15 of 19 

on a semi-weekly basis when the primary tanks are emptied.  This should be identified in the 

proposal”.  He thinks whether the primary tanks are being emptied or not, these things should be 

treated.  Mr. Germanoski said those tanks should only have rain water in it.  Mr. Maxfield said 

three day old rain water.  Mrs. Yerger said they are doing it semi-weekly.  Mr. Maxfield said that’s 

three and a half days.  Mr. Johnson said they say it in here someplace if the secondary water in the 

containment structure has a sheen on it, they will pump it into the tank trucks and take it away to 

the treatment facility.  If it does not have a sheen on it, they’ll just run it down their normal rain 

water drain system path.  Mr. Maxfield said this is actually saying this will be emptied, so we don’t 

know if they are running it down or if they are actually pumping it into a truck and taking it away.  

Mr. Johnson said that’s the proposal.  It’s what’s in the packet.  Mr. Maxfield said you don’t think 

it’s going to sit there that long?  Mrs. Yerger said they are doing it every three and a half days.  Mr. 

Maxfield said when they empty the primary tanks.  He doesn’t know if that’s when and if they 

empty the primary tanks.  Mr. Johnson said another thing to consider is they have these hoses they 

are going to connect to the primary tanks to drain it.  There are two hoses.  There is one set of 

hoses that pump the dirty water into the primary storage tank and then there’s another one that take 

it out of the primary tank and put it in the trucks.  Any of those fittings could leak or when they are 

connecting the hoses up to put it into the trucks, it could leak, so by those leaks getting into the 

second storage structure would create dirty water in the secondary storage structure.  Mrs. Yerger 

said so what we need to do is make sure that on Hanover’s June 22
nd

 letter, No. 4, you want to have 

confirmation that both sets of tanks will be emptied on a regular semi-weekly basis regardless 

whether the tanks are being emptied or not.  Mr. Maxfield said it doesn’t say anything about the 

water will be pumped off on their regular swale or whatever.  It says an environmental contractor 

will be contracted to transfer waste water to a 6,000 gallon truck for hauling and disposal.  It 

doesn’t say if it’s been treated waste water.  Maybe during the whole testing phase, they are 

pumping it all away.  Maybe they are taking every bit of it to Delaware, he doesn’t know.  Mr. 

Johnson said everything they put in the secondary storage tank is going to be taken to Delaware.  

The secondary storage tank is going to get rain water in it.  If it just gets rain water in it, they are 

going to just dump the rain water into some place where they usually dump the rain water.  If it 

gets rain water and the rain water gets contaminated by connecting the hoses to the tank or 

disconnecting the hoses to the tank, then they are going to pump that water into the truck and take 

it away.  Mrs. Yerger said you want that done on a semi-weekly basis, both tanks.  Mr. Johnson 

said the reason they have the 6,000 gallon tanks there is so they don’t have to do it all that often.  

Mrs. Yerger said Hanover wants it done on a semi-annually weekly basis.  Hanover’s June 22 

letter, No. 4, “as per discussion, these tanks will be emptied of rainwater on a semi-weekly basis 

when the primary tanks are emptied”.  Mr. Johnson said they are talking about the secondary tanks. 

Mr. Maxfield said both.  Mrs. Yerger said when the primary tanks are emptied, so is it inferring 

that they are going to be pumped at the same time?  She thinks we need to have that confirmed.  

Ms. Louder said it should also say if it fills up because of a torrential rain storm, it needs to be 

emptied out right away too, just in case.  Mr. Johnson said somewhere else in their proposal, they 

may say they expect the big tanks to fill up every two weeks and need to be emptied every two 

weeks.  Mr. Maxfield said it says they check the fluid levels in the tanks daily.  Mrs. Yerger said 

it’s twice a week is when this is going to be emptied according to the recommendation by Hanover.  

Mr. Johnson said if they empty the secondary storage facilities at the same time they empty the 

primary ones, and they do it twice a week, that’s only three or four days, so therefore, there 

shouldn’t be any problem with mosquito growth.  Mrs. Yerger said that’s what she’s saying.  We 

need to have it confirmed.  Just the way it’s kind of worded, we need it confirmed that the 

secondary and primary tanks need to be emptied every three and a half days.  Mrs. Yerger asked to 

put that on the recommendation.  Mr. Maxfield said they said they will pump it out to the ground 

only if the sheens are not present and that goes back to Hanover’s comment about just because an 

absence of a sheen doesn’t meant absence of pollution, so he likes that one too.  Mrs. Yerger said 

put that one in also, Hanover’s June 22
nd

 letter, No. 5. 

 

Mrs. Yerger said they have to determine it doesn’t have pollution.  Ms. Louder if there are one or 

two tanks?  Mr. Maxfield said two tanks.   



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 16 of 19 

Mr. Johnson said Hanover’s June 20, 2012 letter, No. 6, is important, but they already stated it.  

No. 1 on Hanover’s June 22, 2012 letter is very important because no professional engineer is 

going to put a stamp on a plan unless he feels that it’s good.  Mrs. Yerger said her concern is that 

there are some inconsistencies between the June 20, 2012 Boucher & James letter and what 

Hanover is saying, so she doesn’t know if the inconsistency is because it’s not clear from talking to 

the Designers.  If you look on No. 1 on the Boucher & James letter, “the water collected in these 

storage tanks is to be removed and transported by 6,000 gallon tanker truck every three to six 

days”.  We should hold to the semi-weekly.  Mr. Johnson said that just gives you an idea how 

much gas is cleaned.  Mr. Maxfield said they say the secondary tanks will be emptied of rain water 

on a semi weekly basis when the primary tanks are emptied.  If the primary tanks are emptied every 

six days, then we do have a mosquito problem.  Mrs. Yerger said semi-weekly.  Mr. Maxfield said 

we need to specify semi-weekly.  We need something other than a rough estimate.  Mr. Johnson 

said it says in the Hanover letter semi-weekly.  Mrs. Yerger said it doesn’t say that in the Boucher 

& James letter, it says three to six days, so it’s not consistent, and that’s why we need to reiterate 

semi-weekly.   

 

Mrs. Yerger asked if there were any other questions, comments or concerns?  No one raised their 

hands.   She said we called out three items to have particular attention and clarification plus we’re 

going to recommend that Council address two questions and heed the recommendations of 

Hanover’s June 20, 2012 and June 22, 2012 letters, and Boucher & James letter dated June 20, 

2012. 

 

Ms. Ray said how do they monitor or see any of this from our side, does someone from Hanover go 

out there and inspect anything?  Mr. Johnson said it says in the packet, there’s a person who is to 

accompany the man who drives the truck and is trained in the business of transferring this storage 

fluid successfully.  He is to make sure he does it without spilling anything.  If it is spilled while 

they are transferring the liquids from the primary storage tank to the truck, that they have a certain 

plan to contain that spillage.  He doesn’t know who that person is, but it is supposed to be 

somebody who is trained.  Ms. Ray said how does anybody know that they do this?  How do we 

know?  Mr. Johnson said don’t we have a guy at the landfill that’s supposed to be making sure they 

do everything according to snuff?  Mr. Maxfield said yes, our Host Inspector.   

 

Ms. Louder said she’s on the Landfill Committee and she just got on it, and she’s not an expert on 

it.  She’s just trying to stop the zoning of this.  She’s learned quite a bit.  The expansion is what 

she’s talking about.  The meetings they have every month are held on the third Thursday of the 

month and they are actually open for anyone to attend. You have to let them know you are coming 

as they want to know who’s on site all the time.  Basically, there was the gentlemen from Hanover, 

herself, Priscilla deLeon, and there’s another gentlemen who is an Environmental Engineer.  Mr. 

Johnson said that may be Haz.  Ms. Louder said they sit down and go over all of the numbers that 

are done, all the measurements, the leachate and everything else that is happening there.  They 

question things and basically just go by the report that they gave us.  She knows the Hanover 

Engineer gentleman was taken on a tour.  They were allowed to ride along as it was a introduction 

to herself.  They went through the place and he took pictures of everything that was going on.  

Right now they are putting a lining down in one of three cells and they are going to start filling it 

after it’s checked.  The DEP had been there that morning as well for a spot inspection that they 

weren’t aware of.  These chemicals, it just seems that we have the old landfill that was owned by 

the City of Bethlehem that had no lining in the soil, and right now, every time it rains, that leachate 

volume rises up and they are having a heck of a time getting it to where it’s normal numbers.  They 

can’t get it to normal numbers when it rains, but they are trying their very best to get a handle on it.  

Her concern is that methane gas around without a lining under it is explosive, from what she 

understands.  The new cells do have linings and the methane gas and everything else is just being 

piped through and sent through that funnel which is creating all of those toxins while it’s doing the 

drainage and the filtering and everything else.  It seems to her that would take methane and 

everything else, and leachate and turning it into something even more toxic to our environment and 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 17 of 19 

our part of town on Applebutter Road and Steel City area.  She’s about a mile away from the 

landfill and it’s right on the other side of the mountain.  They are concerned about a lot of different 

things that are going on over there and that’s why she joined the Landfill Committee as she felt that 

she needed to be more educated on what’s going on there.  With the expansion, it’s amazing.  That 

land has absolutely no use – zero use, until the end of time.  It has absolutely no use until the end of 

time.  You can’t do anything there.  There’s not one business that she knows that’s going to want to 

be between the Bethlehem Sewage Plant and the landfill.  She knows there’s a trucking hub that’s 

going out further on 412, but Light Industrial is not going to bring business to Applebutter Road.  

Truly, she personally greatly appreciate if this was not made any bigger and was not allowed to 

bring more toxins closer to her home.  All the deer are gone.  There used to be the biggest buck 

over there.  She grew up over there.  That’s her stomping ground.  The deer all lived on that 

property.  Right now there are two properties that are sitting there.  There are historical buildings 

that were bought up by the landfill and they are being covered up with wood and letting to rot.  

They own them. They bought them all up on Skyline.  They spent $4 million in real estate in the 

past six months.  They bought up the whole mountain.  The whole mountain is gone.  The ridge is 

gone.  Everything is gone and it’s just turning more toxic and more toxic and more toxic and now 

we’re allowing them to store more toxic stuff right on our street.  Please, reconsider doing this.  

She appreciates you allowing her to speak.  She is very passionate about this, she really is.   

 

Mr. Maxfield said for right now, we have BRE.  We don’t have a motion yet.  Mr. Maxfield said 

we’ll restate the motion.   

 

June 22, 2012 Hanover Letter: 
 

1. The design must be signed and sealed by a Professional Engineer. 

2. The Application states that a permanent solution will be implemented in approximately 3 

months.  The Township may wish to consider requiring a latest date that the proposal 

temporary tanks may be utilized, and a means of enforcement of said latest date.  The 

Township may also wish to have input on the means of permanent treatment, for example, that 

the treatment of an inline, interior type as opposed to an offline, exterior storage type. 

3. The Designer intends for the spill containment facilities to have a capacity of greater than the 

primary storage tanks, however the size of the spill containment facilities provided in the 

Application appear to be approximately half the primary storage tanks.  This discrepancy must 

be addressed. Also, slope of ground should be considered in sizing the tanks. 

4. The secondary containment spill tanks are exposed to the weather, and will be emptied 

periodically.  Per discussion with the Designer, these tanks will be emptied of rainwater on a 

semi-weekly basis when the primary tanks are emptied.  This should be identified in the 

proposal. 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Maxfield moved to reiterate concerns in Hanover’s June 20, 2012 and June 22, 2012 

letters, and the Boucher & James June 20, 2012 letter with emphasis on: 

1. Hanover’s June 22, 2012 letter, No. 1, 2, and 3 as it’s in close proximity to the karst 

geology. 

2. Hanover’s June 22, 2012 letter, No. 4, the regular emptying of the containment 

structures.  We want to have confirmation that both sets of tanks will be emptied on a 

regular semi-weekly basis regardless of whether the tanks are being emptied or not.  The 

following questions should be answered: 

a. What is the current system they are using?   

b. Is it an inline interior or an offline exterior storage type and what are the 

differences?   

c. Which are better or worse? 

d. Do they actually need to follow through with this application to repair and operate 

the BRE plant or can they do it without? 

 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 18 of 19 

3. The EAC also needs to reemphasize that they want an end date, a maximum of a 90 day 

limit for the two storage tanks.  That will be an addendum to No. 2 on the Hanover June 

22, 2012 letter where they ask for 90 days after the installation of the tanks as an end 

date. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 (Mr. McCormick – Absent) 
 

V. UPDATES/REPORTS 
 

A. HELLERTOWN-LOWER SAUCON COMMUNITY DAY – SATURDAY, AUGUST 18, 

2012 – 10AM TO 5 PM 

 

Mrs. Yerger said Community Day is on August 18, 2012.  If you have any ideas of things should 

be included that we want on display in terms of the EAC, please let her know.  We can put the 

“Return on the Environment” pamphlets out.  She asked Diane to run some flyers on the recycling.  

 

B. Mr. Beardsley asked about an update on the Dyer property.  Mrs. Yerger said they went out and 

monitored it and it’s actually the Bracalente property that was sold, so there’s three monitoring 

reports in your packet, but they are all messed up, so their recommendation was to have them 

straightened out.    

 

 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

A. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF JUNE 12, 2012 MINUTES 

 

Mrs. Yerger sad we have the June 12, 2012 minutes to approve.   

 

Corrections: 

Page 1, line 39, change Mrs. deLeon to Mrs. Yerger 

Page 3, line 30, after the word “most”, add “gas pipelines” 

Page 4, line 2, after EAC, take out the word “should” 

Page 4, line 28, change the word “lead way”: to leeway” 

Page 5, line 14, change the third word, “for”, to “four” 

Page 5, line 26, change the word “tracks”, to “trips” 

Page 6, line 8, change the word “Yu” to “You” 

Page 6, line 28 should read “rocky uplands and “migrate down to the pools, and usually the pools 

are “down slope”. 

Page 9, line 24, the line should read “so between “now and” July 10
th
 

Page 9, line 49 where it says (could not hear him), replace it with “are the property lines on GIS 

more accurate than the County”. 

Page 10, line 1, “Telles” should be “Thalles” 

Page 10, line 5, after “Google Earth”, add the word “Pro” 

 

MOTION BY: Mr. Johnson moved for approval of the June 12, 2012 minutes, with corrections. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Maxfield 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 (Mr. McCormick – Absent)  

 

VII. OLD/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None 

 

VIII. TERRY BOOS – HELLERTOWN REPRESENTATIVE – REPORT 

 Mr. Boos said Hellertown is going to borrow $2 million to undertake a number of capital 

improvement projects.  One of them is funding for a band shell at Dimmick Park.  They are also 

going to be replacing some of the bridges along Silver Creek.   

IX. NON-AGENDA ITEM 



Environmental Advisory Council 

July 10, 2012  

 

Page 19 of 19 

 Mr. Johnson asked what are you going to do with the laptop?  Mr. Germanoski said he operated 

under the assumption that Mr. Johnson should take it.  Mrs. Yerger said that’s fine.   Mr. 

Germanoski said there are instructions and passwords.  Please email John if you have questions. 

Mr. Germanoski won’t be at the next meeting, but as you develop questions, if you want to run 

things by him and get feedback, or set up a meeting with him, he’s happy to do that.  You might 

choose to go over to the college and he’d have all of his resources there and show you other 

projects.  It may be a good idea to get some ideas.   They will follow through on getting you 

operation manuals and things like that.   

 Mrs. Yerger said if  you have a couple of minutes, take a look at the criteria for the Open Space and 

see if those are some of the things we might want to have to have a report run and incorporate into 

the project with the students.   

 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION BY: Ms. Ray moved for adjournment.  The time was 9:25 P.M. 

SECOND BY: Mr. Beardsley 

ROLL CALL: 6-0 (Mr. McCormick – Absent) 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Sandra Yerger, Chair 


